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TAI YAU BANK, LIMITED

DIRECTORS' REPORT

The directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report and the audited financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

Tai Yau Bank, Limited (the "Bank") is a private limited liability company incorporated in Hong Kong. It
is a licensed bank authorised under the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance. The Bank provides banking and
other related financial services to its customers and placements with banks in Hong Kong.

BUSINESS REVIEW

Our business activities as mentioned above were carried out under prudent risk management. In view of
the changing macroeconomic environment, the Bank has been closely monitoring the market volatility in
order to manage its liquidity risks and enhance the return on assets.

ANALYSIS OF KEY FINANCIAL DATA

For the year ended 31 December 2018, profit before tax amounted to HK$15,692,180 (2017:
HK$248,250,580) showing a decrease of 94% from the results in the previous year. Interest income
derived from bank placements with annual interest rates ranging from 0.12% to 4.3% (2017: from 0.03%
to 1.78%) amounted to HK$38,866,593 (2017: HK$19,697,875), which was 97% higher than that of last
year. Total assets in the current year amounted to HK$2,922,476,893 (2017: HK$2,853,916,999),

representing an increase of 2%.

In regards of the Bank's operating expenses, the directors’ emoluments and staff costs amounted to
HK$9,040,417 (2017: HK$8,378,131), showing an increase of 8% in the current year.

Total capital adequacy ratio of 139.10% (2017 157.29%) decreased by 12% after the increase in our
money market placement activities in 2018. Both Tier 1 capital ratio and Common Equity Tier 1 capital
ratio were maintained at 139.08% (2017: 157.27%), representing a decrease of 12% in the current year.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the net interest margin is 1.2% (2017: 0.74%) showing an increase
of 62% from the results in the previous year. Return on average total assets is 0.45% (2017: 8.88%)
decreased by 95%. Return on equities is 1.7% (2017: 31.6%) representing a decrease of 95%.

Overall, the Bank's core business lines and financial health are strong and sound. Its asset quality is good,
capital adequacy ratio and liquidity maintenance ratio are well above the relevant statutory requirements.



TAI YAU BANK, LIMITED

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

Sustainability and environmental conservation is an important issue for our customers, shareholders,
govemment and the general public. Therefore the Bank is committed to reducing its carbon footprint and
consumption of natural resources in all possible aspects of business operations.

Our environmental strategy is centered on achieving a balance between the quality and efficiency of our
services and the minimisation of greenhouse gas emissions and environmental degradation. Accordingly,
the Bank has taken a proactive approach to effect internal and external communications by means of
telephone, emails or such other communication means which are efficient yet environmentally friendly.
Consequently we are able to minimise physical printing.

At present, except for legal documents such as contracts and share certificates and documentary evidence
for audit or legal purposes, the Bank avoids keeping duplicate of hardcopy of all documents and reports.
All kinds of documents are scanned and saved in an electronic system for future retrieval.

E-mails and electronic messages have replaced letters for some formal and informal communications,
both externally and internally.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

The Bank operates in a highly regulated sector where the risk of non-compliance with regulatory
requirements could lead to the loss of operating licenses. Accordingly the effective management of the
relationship between the Bank and its regulators could significantly impact the success of the Bank and its
long term value. Therefore, we make it a top priority to ensure compliance with the relevant rules and
regulations, and to stay up to date on new laws.

During the year under review, the Bank has, therefore, deployed considerable resources, as well as
adopted and implemented relevant measures, to ensure that the relevant statutory and regulatory
requirements are complied with and that a high standard of corporate governance practices is maintained.

Compliance with these laws, regulations and similar requirements may be onerous and expensive. Any
such costs, which may rise in the future as a result of changes in these laws and regulations or in their
interpretation could individually or in the aggregate make the Bank's services less attractive to the Bank's
customers; delay the introduction of new services; or cause the Bank to change or limit its business
practices. The Bank has implemented policies and procedures designed to ensure compliance with the
most relevant laws and regulations, but there can be no assurance that the Bank's employees or agents will
not violate such laws and regulations o‘r the Bank's policies and procedures.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES

The employees of the Bank are one of the most important assets and stakeholders of the Bank and their
contribution and support are valued at all times. The Bank regularly reviews compensation and benefit
policies according to industry benchmark, financial results as well as the individual performance of
employees. Other fringe benefits and mandatory provident fund are provided to retain loyal employees
with the aim to form a professional staff and management team that can bring the Bank to new levels of
success. Staff satisfaction can be seen by our low staff turnover. Furthermore, the Bank places great
emphasis on the training and development of employees and regard excellent employees as a key factor in

its competiveness.
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TAI YAU BANK, LIMITED

RELATIONSHIP WITH CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Our directors believe that maintaining good relationships with customers has been one of the critical
reasons for the Bank's success. Our mission is to provide the finest services to our customers. The Bank
is constantly looking at ways to improve customer relationship through enhanced services. Through
carrying out the above we hope to enhance our business opportunities with our customers and reach out
for new potential clients.

The Bank has no major suppliers due to the nature of the principal activities of the Bank.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Bank include strategic, operational and financial risks.

Strategic risks

The directors maintain a strategic plan together with a financial budget at the end of each financial year
based on the knowledge to external environments and a number of forecast and estimates. Given the
rapid change of unforeseeable external environments in the financial industry, the Bank is facing
significant strategic risks on its business decisions and capital expenditures when changing the strategic
plans to adapt to the unexpected changes of external environments.

Operational risks

The management regularly reviews the Bank's operations to ensure that the Bank's risk of losses, whether
financial or otherwise, resulting from fraud, errors, omissions and other operational and compliance
matters, are adequately managed. The Bank has also established its own business continuity plan to
protect the Bank from the risk of interruption to its business continuity. '

Financial risks

The principal financial risks are set out in note 4 to the financial statements heading "FINANCIAL RISK
MANAGEMENT".

EVENT AFTER THE;REPORTTNG PERIOD

No significant events occurred subsequent to the reporting period.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Bank for the year ended 31 December 2018 are set out in the statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income on page 9.
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TAI YAU BANK, LIMITED

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the Bank's share capital are set out in note 19 to the financial statements. There was no
movement in the Bank's share capital during the year.

DIVIDENDS

The Directors have declared the payment of final dividend of HK$0.50 per ordinary share (2017: NIL) in
respect of the financial year ended 31 December 2018.

DIRECTORS
The directors of the Bank during the year and up to the date of this report were:

Mr. Ko, Sai Kin Kenneth (Chairman) (appointed on 1 July 2018)
Mr. Ko Fook Kau Eric (retired on 30 June 2018)
Mr. Ko, Derek Fook Ying

Mr. Ko, Arthur Sai Chun

Mr. Ko, Sai Kit Larry

Ms. Ko, Mang Yee Adaline

Mrs. Cheung, Pauline

Mr. Young, Tsan Shao

Mr. Yuen, Man Ying

In accordance with the Bank's Articles of Association, all directors retire and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Bank a party to any arrangements to enable the directors of the Bank
to'acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or debentures of, the Bank or any other body

corporate.
DIREICTORS' INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE
No contract of significance to which the Bank was a party and in which a director of the Bank had a

material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.



TAT YAU BANK, LIMITED

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

In accordance with Article 126 of the Bank's Articles of Association, there is a permitted indemnity
provision for the benefit of the directors of the Bank which is currently in force and was in force
throughout the year.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the annual general meeting to re-appoint Messrs. Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu as auditor of the Bank.

On behalf of the Board
Mr. Ko, Sai Kin Kenneth
CHAIRMAN

2 April 2019
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF TAI YAU BANK, LIMITED
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Tai Yau Bank, Limited (the "Bank") set out on pages 9
to 49, which comprise the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018, and the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes in equity and
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the financial position of the
Bank as at 31 December 2018, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ("HKFRSs") issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued
by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Bank in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the "Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other Information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our

auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and -we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there isa
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard. .

Digital Difference
BENH 6



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF TAI YAU BANK, LIMITED - continued
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements '

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
Or error.

In préparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Bank's ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Bank
or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Bank's financial reporting
process. ‘

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 405 of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance
is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial

statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank's internal control.



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

TO THE MEMBERS OF TA] YAU BANK, LIMITED - continued
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements - continued

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors' use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Bank to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

2 April 2019



TAI YAU BANK. LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

Interest income
Interest expense

Net interest income
Other operating income

Operating income

Operating expenses

Impairment losses

Gain on disposal of an available-for-sale investment

Profit before tax
Income tax expense

Net profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to
profit or loss:
Available-for-sale investments
Net fair value changes during the year
Reclassification adjustment to profit or loss
on disposal

Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income for the year

NOTES

11

2018 2017
HKS HKS
18,866,593 19,697,875
(8,524,924) (2,659,596)
30,341,669 17,038,279

43,320 3,251,744
30,384,989 20,290,023
(14,392,809)  (12,967,350)
(300,000) -

- 240,927,907
15,692,180 248,250,580
(2,449,095) (730,000)
13,243,085 247,520,580

; 244,237,907

; (240,927,907)

; 3,310,000
13,243,085 250,830,580




TAI YAU BANK. LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AT 31 DECEMBER 2018

ASSETS

Cash and balances with banks and other
financial institutions

Money at call and short notice

Placements with banks maturing between
one and twelve months

Advances to customers and other accounts

Prepayment

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Intangible asset

Available-for-sale investments

Deferred tax assets

Equipment and leasehold improvements

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES

Deposits from customers
Other accounts and provisions
Tax payable

CAPITAL RESOURCES
Share capital
Reserves

SHAREHOLDERS' FUNDS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL
RESOURCES

12
12

12
13

14
5
16

17
18

19

315,428,625
1,191,131,456

1,402,154,520

2017
HKS$

562,071,620
831,897,487

1,451,728,820

495,391,899

8,957,021 4,363,678
76,667 -
3,400,000 -
210,000 210,000
- 3,400,000
245,394 245,394
873,210 -
2,922,476,893  2,853,916,999
2,120,333,265  2,066,853,213
4,814,765 3,278,164
1,936,964 436,808
2,127,084,994  2,070,568,185
300,000,000 300,000,000

483,348,814

795,391,899

783,348,814

2,922,476,893

2,853,916,999

The financial statements on pages 9 to 49 were approved and authorised for issue by the Board of
Directors on 2 April 2019 and are signed on its behalf by:

DIRECTORS: KO, SAI KIN KENNETH
KO, DEREK FOOK YING

KO, ARTHUR SAI CHUN

-10-
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TAI YAU BANK, LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

At 1 January 2017

Profit for the year

Other comprehensive income
for the year

Available-for-sale investments

- Net fair value changes
during the year

- Reclassification adjustment
to profit or loss on disposal

At 31 December 2017
Impact of adopting HKFRS 9 (Note 2)
At 1 Janvary 2018

Profit and ather
comprehensive income
for the year

At 31 December 2018

. Investments
Share Retained General Regulatory Capital revaluation
capital profits reserve reserve reserve reserve Total
HK$ HK$ HK$ BK$ HK$ HK$ HK$
300,000,000 180,911,175 46,000,000 100,000 5,507,059 - 532,518,234
- 247,520,580 - - - - 247,520,580
- - - - 3,310,000 3,310,000
- - - 244,237,907 || 244,237,907
. - - - (240,927,907} 1 [ (240,927,907)
300,000,000 428431,755 46,000,000 100,000 5,507,059 3,310,000 783,348,814
- 2,110,000 - - - {3,310,000) (1,200,000)
300,000,000 430,541,755 46,000,000 100,000 5,507,059 - 782,148,814
- 13,243,085 - - - - 13,243,085
300,000,000 443,784,840 46,000,000 100,000 5,507,059 795,391,899

Note: The regulatory reserve is set up in compliance with the Hong Kong Monetary Authority's requirements and is distributable to

shareholders of the Bank subject to consultation with the Hong Kong Monetary Authority.

The general reserve and capital reserve comprised transfers from previous years' retained profits.

211 -




TAI YAU BANK, LIMITED

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit before tax
Adjustments for:

Interest income

Interest expense

Dividends from unlisted available-for-sale investments
Gain on disposal of an available-for-sale investment
Depreciation expenses
Impairment losses

Operating cash flows before movements in working capital

(Increase) decrease in money at call and short notice with
original maturity more than three months

(Increase) decrease in placements with banks with original
maturity more than three months

(Increase) decrease in advances to customers

Increase in prepayment

Increase (decrease) in deposits from customers

Increase in other accounts

Net cash (used in) generated from operations
Interest received

Interest paid

Hong Kong Profits Tax paid

NET CASH (USED IN) GENERATED FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Dividends received from unlisted available-for-sale investments

Proceeds on disposal of an available-for-sale investment
Purchase of equipment

NET CASH (USED IN) GENERATED FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES

NET (DECREASE) INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 1 JANUARY
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT 31 DECEMBER

ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS !

Cash and balances with banks and other financial institutions

Money at call and short notice with original maturity at or
less than three months

Placements with banks with original maturity at or less than
three months

2018
HKS$

15,692,180

(38,866,593)
8,524,924

51,365
300,000

2017
HK$

248,250,580
(19,697,875)
2,659,596

(2,820,000)
(240.927,907)

(14,298,124)

(12,535,606)

(569,750,000) 306,006,000
(54,361,712) 152,087,886
(249,000) 221,000
(76,667) )
53,480,054 (54,264,156)
245,557 408,058
(585,009,892) 391,923,182
34,502,250 19,987,118
(7,233,882) (2,517,767)
(948,939) (413,192)
(558,690,463) 408,979,341
. 2,820,000
- 252,087,907
(924,575) -
(924,575) 254,907,907
(559,615,038) 663,887,248

1,788,550,094

1,124,662,846

1,228,935,056

1,788,550,094

315,491,423
521,668,048

391,775,585

562,071,620
731,897,487

494,580,987

1,228,935,056

1,788,550,094

-12-



TAI YAU BANK, LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

1. GENERAL

Tai Yau Bank, Limited (the "Bank") is a private limited liability company incorporated in Hong
Kong. It is a licensed bank authorised under the Hong Kong Banking Ordinance. The address of
the registered office and principal place of business of the Bank is 29/F, Tai Tung Building, 8
Fleming Road, Wan Chai, Hong Kong.

The major business of our Bank are the provision of banking and other related financial services
to its customers and placements with banks in Hong Kong.

The financial statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars ("HK$"), which is the functional
currency of the Bank.

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("HKFRSs")

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily effective for the current year

The Bank has applied the following new and amendments to HKFRS issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") for the first time in the current year.

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers and the related
Amendments

HK(IFRIC) - Int 22 Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance
Consideration _

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and Measurement of Share-based Payment
Transactions :

Amendments to HKFRS 4 - Applying HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments with

' 'HKFRS 4 Insurance Contracts

Amendments to HKAS 28 As part of the Anhnual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014 - 2016 Cycle

Amen(?ments to HKAS 40 Transfers of Investment Property

Except as described below, the application of other new and amendments to HKFRSs in the
current year has had no material impact on the Bank's financial performance and positions for the
current and prior years and/or on the disclosures set out in these financial statements.

-13 -



TAI YAU BANK, LIMITED

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("HKFRSs") - continued

HKFRS 9 "Financial Instruments”

In the current year, the Bank has applied HKFRS 9 "Financial Instruments” and the related
consequential amendments to other HKFRSs. HKFRS 9 introduces new requirements for 1) the
classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities, 2) expected credit
losses ("ECL") for financial assets and 3) general hedge accounting.

The Bank has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance with the transition provisions set out in HKFRS 9,
i.e. applied the classification and measurement requirements (including impairment under ECL
model) retrospectively to instruments that have not been derecognised as at 1 January 201 8 and
has not applied the requirements to instruments that have already been derecognised as at 1
January 2018. The difference between carrying amounts as at 31 December 2017 and the carrying
amounts as at 1 January 2018 are recognised in the opening accumulated losses and other
components of equity, without restating comparative information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may not be comparable as comparative information
was prepared under HKAS 39 "Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement".

Accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS 9 are disclosed in note 3.

Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 9

The table below illustrates the impacts on the retained profits at the date of initial adoption, 1

January 2018:
Impact of
adopting HKFRS 9
on opening balance
HKS
Retained profits
Remeasurement of expected credit loss
on financial assets measurement at amortised cost (1,200,000)
Transfer from investment revaluation reserve 3,310,000
Net increase in retained profits at 1 January 2018 2,110,000
[nvestment revaluation reserve
Transfer to retained profits (3,310,000)
Net decrease in investment revaluation reserve at 1 January 2018 (3,310,000)

.14 -



TAI YAU BANK, LIMITED

APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING

STANDARDS ("HKFRSs") - continued

HKFRS 9 "Financial Instruments" - continued

Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 9 - continued

The table below illustrates the impacts on opening statement of financial position from the

application of HKFRS 9.

ASSETS
Cash and due from banks and other
financial institutions
Money at call and short notice
Placements with banks maturing
between one and twelve months
Advances to customers and other accounts

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Intangible asset

Available-for-sale investments

Deferred tax assets

Equipment and leaschold improvements

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Deposits from customer
Other accounts and provision
Tax payable

Total liabilities

CAPITAL RESQURCES
Share capital
Reserves

Total liabilities and capital resources

a. Available-for-sale investments

Reclassification Remeasurement

From available-  Impairment
31 December for-sale charge under 1 January
2017 investments ECL model 2018
HKS$ HKS HK$ HK$

562,071,620 - (61,473) 362,010,147
831,897,487 - (165,642) 831,731,845
1,451,728,820 - {963,600) 1,450,765,220
4,363,678 - (9,285) 4,354,393
3,400,000 - 3,400,000
- 210,000 - 210,000

3,610,000 (3,610,000) - -
245,394 - - 245,394
2,853,916,999 - {1,200,000) 2,852,716,99%
2,066,853,213 - - 2,066,853,213
3,278,164 - - 3,278,164
436,808 - - 436,808
2,070,568,185 - - 2,070,568,185
300,000,000 - - 300,000,000
483,348,814 - (1,200,000) 482,148,814
2,853,916,999 - (1,200,000) 2,852,716,999

Investment in club debenture with a fair value of HK$3,400,000 were reclassified from
available-for-sale investments to financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
("FVTPL"). This is because such club debenture is held within a business model whose
objective is not achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and collecting
contractual cash flows and selling of these assets and the contractual cash flows of such
investment. Related fair value gains of HK$3,310,000 were transferred from the
investment revaluation reserve to retained profits as at 1 January 2018.

.15 -



TAI YAU BANK. LIMITED

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("HKFRSs") - continued

HKFRS 9 "Financial Instruments” - continued
Summary of effects arising from initial application of HKFRS 9 - continued
b. Impairment under ECL model

ECL for financial assets at amortised cost are assessed on 12-month ECL basis as there
had been no significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition.

As at 1 January 2018, credit loss allowance of HK$1,200,000 has been recognised against
retained profits. The loss allowance is charged against the respective asset.

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The Bank has applied HKFRS 15 for the first time in the current year. HKFRS 15 replaces HKAS
18, Revenue, which covered revenue arising from sale of goods and rendering of services, and
HKAS 11, Construction contracts, which specified the accounting for construction contracts.

The Bank performed an assessment of the new standard and concluded that the current treatment
. of revenue from contracts with customers is consistent with the new principles. The adoption of
HKFRS 15 does not have any material impact on the financial position and there is no transitional

impact to retained profits.

New or revised standards and interpretations that have been issued but not vet effective

The Bank has not early applied the following new or amendments to HKFRSs that have been
issued but are not yet effective.

HKFRS 16 Leases'
'HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts’
HK(IFRIC) - Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments'
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business*
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation’
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
and HKAS 28 its Associate or Joint Venture?
Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material®
and HKAS 8 '
Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement’
Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures!
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015 - 2017 Cycle!
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TAI YAU BANK, LIMITED

2, APPLICATION OF NEW AND REVISED HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS ("HKFRSs"} - continued

New or revised standards and interpretations that have been issued but not vet effective
- continued

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be determined

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021

Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions for which the acquisition date is on
or after the beginning of the first annual period beginning on or after 1 January 2020
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020

1
2
3
4
5

Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs mentioned above, the directors of the Bank
anticipate that the application of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no material
impact on the financial statements in the foreseeable future.

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 eliminates the current requirements for lessees to distinguish between on-balance
sheet finance leases and off-balance sheet operating leases. They are to be replaced by a single,
on-balance sheet accounting model instead. Lessees will recognise a right of use asset and a
carresponding lease liability on the balance sheet. The right of use asset will be amortised over
the length of the lease and the lease liability will be measured at amortised cost. As at 31
December 2018, the Bank has non-cancellable operating lease commitments of HK$521,300 as

disclosed in note 23. :

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA.
Tn addition, the financial statements include applicable disclosures required by the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance ("CO").

The financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis. Historical cost is
generally based on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for goods or services.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an i
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating the
fair value of an asset or a liability, the Bank takes into account the characteristics of the asset or
liability if market participants would take those characteristics into account when pricing the asset
or liability at the measurement date.

For financial instruments which are transacted at fair value and a valuation technique that

unobservable inputs are to be used to measure fair value in subsequent periods, the valuation
technique is calibrated so that the results of the valuation technique equals the transaction price.
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TAI YAU BANK, LIMITED

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value measurements are categorised into Level 1,
2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements are observable and
the significance of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which are described as

follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities that the entity can access at the measurement date;

* Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included within Level 1, that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Interest income and €Xpense

Interest income and expense for all financial instruments, excluding those financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss (and available-for-sale investments before adoption of HKFRS 9 on 1
January 2018), are recognised in Interest income and Interest expense in the income statement
(calculating by applying) the effective interest rate ("EIR") to the gross carrying amount of a
financial asset, except for financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired. For
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset from the next
reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that the
financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the reporting
period following the determination that the asset is no longer credit impaired.

Equipment and leasehold improvements

Equipment and leasehold improvements is stated in the statement of financial position at cost less
subsequent accumulated depreciation and amortisation and subsequent accumulated impairment

losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets less their residual values over their
estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method. The estimated useful lives, residual values
and depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimates accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of equipment and leasehold improvements is derecognised upon disposal or when no
future economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any gain or
loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of equipment and leasehold improvements is
determined as the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the assets and
is recognised in profit or loss.
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TAI YAU BANK, LIMITED

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Intangible assets

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired separately are carried at cost less
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation is recognised on a
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful life and amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
being accounted for on a prospective basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses.

Financial instruments - before adoption of HKFRS 9 as at 1 January 2018

Financial assets and financial labilities are recognised in the statement of financial position when
the Bank becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs that
are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities (other
than financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or
deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or
financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Financial assets

The Bank's financial assets are classified into loans and receivables and available-for-sale ("AFS")
financial assets. The classification depends on the nature and purpose of the financial assets and
is determined at the time of initial recognition, All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial asset and
of allocating interest income over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including all fees on points paid or received that
form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial asset, or, where appropriate, a shorter period,
to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest income is recognised on an effective interest basis for financial assets.
AFS financial assets

AFS financial assets are non-derivatives that are either designated as available-for-sale or are not
classified as financial assets at FVTPL, loans and receivables or held-to-maturity investments.
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TAI YAU BANK, LIMITED

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - before adoption of HKFRS 9 as at 1 January 2018 - continued

Financial assets - continued
AFS financial assets - continued

Equity and debt securities held by the Bank that are classified as AFS financial assets are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period except for unquoted equity investments
whose fair value cannot be reliably measured. Changes in the carrying amount of AFS debt
instruments relating to interest income calculated using the effective interest method, are
recognised in profit or loss. Dividends on AFS equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss
when the Bank's right to receive the dividends is established. Other changes in the carrying
amount of AFS financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated
under the heading of investments revaluation reserve. When the investment is disposed of or is
determined to be impaired, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments
revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

AFS equity investments that do not have a quoted market price in an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured are measured at cost less any identified impairment losses at the

end of each reporting period.
Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that
are not quoted in an active market. Loans and receivables (including cash and balances with
banks and other financial institutions, money at call and short notice, placements with banks
maturing between one and twelve months, and advances to customers and other accounts) are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective interest rate, except for short-term
receivables where the recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Impairment of financial assets

Financial assets other than those at FVTPL are assessed for indicators of impairment at the end of
each reporting period. Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is objective
evidence that, as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of the
financial asset, the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have been affected.

For financial assets, objective evidence of impairment could include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or counterparty; or

. breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments; or

. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or financial re-organisation;
or

. the disappearance of an active market for that financial asset because of financial
difficulties.
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TAI YAU BANK, LIMITED

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - before adoption of HKFRS 9 as at 1 January 2018 - continued

Financial assets - continued
Impairment of financial assets - continued

For certain categories of financial asset, such as advances to customers, assets that are assessed
not to be impaired individually are, in addition, assessed for impairment on a collective basis.
Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of advances to customers could include the
Bank's past experience of collecting payments and observable changes in national or local
economic conditions that correlate with default on advances to customers.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of the impairment loss recognised is the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash
flows discounted at the financial asset's original effective intercst rate.

When an AFS financial asset is considered to be impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss in the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment losses was recognised, the previously recognised impairment loss is reversed
through profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset at the date the impairment
is reversed does not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been

recognised.

In respect of AFS equity investments, impairment losses previously recognised in profit or loss are
not reversed through profit or loss. Any increase in fair value subsequent to an impairment loss is
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of investments
revaluation reserve. In respect of AFS debt investments, impairment losses are subsequently
reversed through profit or loss if an increase in the fair value of the investment can be objectively
related to an event occurring after the recognition of the impairment loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments isstied by the Bank are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Bank
after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Bank are recognised at the
proceeds received, net of direct issue cost.

221 -
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - before adoption of HKFRS 9 as at 1 January 2018 - continued

Financial liabilities and equity instruments - continued
Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest basis.
Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including deposits from customers, interest payable and others) are
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial guarantee contracts

A financial guarantee contract is a contract that requires the issuer to make specified payments to
reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Bank are initially measured at their fair values and, if
not designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of :

(1) the amount of obligation under the contract, as determined in accordance with HKAS 37
Provisions, Contingent liabilities and Contingent assets; and

(i)  the amount initially recognised less, where appropriate, cumulative amortisation
recognised over the guarantee period.

Derecognition

o

The Bank derecognises a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash flows from -
the asset expire or when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the assets to another entity. If the Bank neither transfers nor retains substantially
all the risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Bank
recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to
pay. If the Bank retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred
financial asset, the Bank continues to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.
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TAI YAU BANK, LIMITED

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - before adoption of HKFRS 9 as at 1 January 2018 - continued

Derecognition - continued

On derecognition of a financial asset, the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
sum of the consideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been
recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity is recognised in profit or
loss.

The Bank derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when, the Bank's obligation are
discharged, cancelled or have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of the
financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is recognised in profit or
loss.

Financial instruments - upon adoption of HKFRS 9 as at 1 January 2018

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the Bank's balance sheet when the Bank
becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the instrument.

The Bank classifies its financial instruments under the following categories: cash and balances
with banks and other financial institutions, money at call and short notice, placements with banks
maturing between one and twelve months, advances to customers and other accounts, financial
assets designated at fair value, and deposits from customers. The classification depends on the
business model and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial assets, or the election
of fair value option. Management determines the classification at initial recognition.

Financial assets measured at amortised cost

Financial assets that are held within a business model whose objective is to collect the contractual
cash flows, and that have contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding, are measured at amortised cost. These financial assets arc
initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs, and are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method. Impairment allowances are recognised in
profit or loss with corresponding adjustment to an allowance account which reduces the carrying
.amounts of these assets. If the amount of impairment allowances decreases in subsequent periods,
| the impairment loss is reversed through profit or loss. This category includes cash and balances

" with banks and other financial institutions, money at call and short notice, placements with banks
maturing between one and twelve months, and advances to customers and other accounts.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - upon adoption of HKFRS 9 as at 1 January 2018 - continued

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL™")

Financial assets at FVTPL are:

* assets with contractual cash flows that are not solely payments of principal and interest;
or/and

. assets that are held in a business model other than held to collect contractual cash flows or
held to collect and sell; or

. assets designated at FVTPL using the fair value option.

These assets are measured at fair value, with any gains/losses arising on remeasurement
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of financial assets at amortised cost

Expected credit losses (ECL) are recognised for cash and balances with banks and other financial
institutions, money at call and short notice, placements with banks maturing between one and
twelve months, and advances to customers and other accounts. At initial recognition, allowance
(or provision in the case of some loan commitments and financial guarantees) is required for ECL
resulting from default events that are possible within the next 12 months, or less, where the
remaining life is less than 12 months (12-month ECL). In the event of a significant increase in
credit risk, allowance (or provision) is required for ECL resulting from all possible default events
over the expected life of the financial instrument (lifetime ECL). Financial assets where 12-
month ECL is recognised are considered to be stage 1; financial assets that are considered to have
experienced a significant increase in credit risk are in stage 2; and financial assets for which there
is objective evidence of impairment so are considered to be in default or otherwise credit impaired

are in stage 3.
Credit-impaired financial assets (Stage 3 assets)

A financial asset is 'credit-impaired’ when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred. Credit-impaired financial
assets are referred to as Stage 3 assets. Evidence of credit-impairment includes observable data

about the following events:

. significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
. a breach of contract such as a default or past due event;
o the lender of the borrower, for economic or contractual reasons relating to the borrower's

financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower a concession that the lender would not

otherwise consider;
. the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties; or
. the purchase of a financial asset at a deep discount that reflects the incurred credit losses.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - upon adoption of HKFRS 9 as at 1 January 2018 - continued

Credit-impaired financial assets (Stage 3 assets) - continued

A loan is considered credit-impaired when a concession is granted to the borrower due to a
deterioration in the borrower's financial condition, unless there is evidence that as a result of
granting the concession the risk of not receiving the contractual cash flows has reduced
significantly and there are no other indicators of impairment. For financial assets where
concessions are contemplated but not granted the asset is deemed credit impaired when there is
observable evidence of credit-impairment including meeting the definition of default. The
definition of default (see below) includes unlikeliness to pay indicators and a back-stop if amounts
are overdue for 90 days or more.

Definition of default

Critical to the determination of ECL is the definition of default. The definition of default is used
in measuring the amount of ECL and in the determination of whether the loss allowance is based
on 12-month or lifetime ECL, as default is a component of the probability of default ("PD") which
affects both the measurement of ECLs and the identification of a significant increase in credit risk.

The Bank considers the following as constituting an event of default:

. the borrower is past due more than 90 days on any material credit obligation to the Bank;
or
. the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Bank in full.

Significant increase in credit risk

The Bank monitors all financial assets, issued loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts
that are subject to the impairment requirements to assess whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition. If there has been a significant increase in credit
risk the Bank will measure the loss allowance based on lifetime rather than 12-month ECL. The
Bank's accounting policy is not to use the practical expedient that financial assets with "low’ credit
risk at the reporting date are deemed not to have had a significant increase in credit risk. Asa
result the Bank monitors all financial assets, issued loan commitments and financial guarantee
contracts that are subject to impairment for significant increase in credit risk.

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since
initial recognition, the Bank compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument at
the reporting date based on the remaining maturity of the instrument with the risk of a default
occurring that was anticipated for the remaining maturity at the current reporting date when the
financial instrument was first recognised. In making this assessment, the Bank considers both
quantitative and qualitative information that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is available without undue cost or effort, based
on the Bank's historical experience and expert credit assessment including forward-looking

information.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - upon adoption of HKFRS 9 as at 1 January 2018 - continued

Significant increase in credit risk - continued

The quantitative information is a primary indicator of significant increase in credit risk and is
based on the change in lifetime PD by comparing:

. the remaining lifetime PD at the reporting date; with
. the remaining lifetime PD for this point in time that was estimated based on facts and
circumstances at the time of initial recognition of the exposure.

The PDs used are forward-looking and the Bank uses the same methodologies and data used to
measure the loss allowance for ECL.

The qualitative factors that indicate significant increase in credit risk are reflected in PD models
on a timely basis. However the Bank still considers separately some qualitative factors to assess if
credit risk has increased significantly. For corporate lending there is particular focus on assets

that are included on a 'watch list' given an exposure is on a watch list once there is a concern that
the creditworthiness of the specific counterparty has deteriorated. For retail lending the Bank
considers the expectation of forbearance and payment holidays, credit scores and events such as
unemployment, bankruptcy, divorce or death.

As a back-stop when an asset becomes 30 days past due, the Bank considers that a significant
increase in credit risk has occurred and the asset is in stage 2 of the impairment model, i.e. the loss
allowance is measured as the lifetime ECL. In addition loans that are individually assessed and
are included on a watch list are in stage 2 of the impairment model. As noted if there is evidence
of credit-impairment the assets are at stage 3 of the impairment model.

Modification and derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset is modified when the contractual terms governing the cash flows of a financial
asset are modified between initial recognition and maturity of the financial asset. The modified
financial asset is derecognised if the existing agreement is cancelled and a new agreement is made
on substantially different terms or if the terms of an existing agreement are modified such that the
modified financial asset is a substantially different financial instrument. In the case where the
modified financial asset is derecognised, the ECL is remeasured at the date of derecognition to
determine the net carrying amount of the asset at that date. The difference between this revised
carrying amount and the fair value of the new financial ‘asset will lead to a gain/loss on
derecognition.

The new financial asset will generally have an impairment allowance measured based on 12-
month ECL. Where a modification does not lead to derecognition, the Bank calculates the
modification gain/loss by comparing the gross carrying amount before and after the modification
(excluding the ECL allowance). The Bank determines if the credit risk of the modified financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition by comparing the risk of a default
occurring at the reporting date (based on the modified contractual terms) and that at initial
recognition (based on the original, unmodified contractual terms).

226 -



TAI YAU BANK, LIMITED

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - upon adoption of HKFRS 9 as at 1 January 2018 - continued

Modification and derecognition of financial assets - continued

If the credit risk remains significantly higher than what was expected at initial recognition, the
impairment allowance will continue to be measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECL. The
impairment allowance will only be measured based on 12-month ECL when there is evidence of
the borrower's improved repayment behaviour following modification leading to a reversal of the
previous significant increase in credit risk. '

Write-off

Financial assets are written off when the Bank has no reasonable expectations of recovering the
financial asset (either in its entirety or a portion of it). This is the case when the Bank determines
that the borrower does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash
flows to repay the amounts subject to the write-off. A write-off constitutes a derecognition event.
The Bank may apply enforcement activities to financial assets written off. Recoveries resulting
from the Bank's enforcement activities will result in impairment gains, which will be presented in
'net impairment loss on financial assets' in the statement of profit or loss.

Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of financial position

Loss allowances for ECL are presented in the statement of financial position for financial assets
measured at amortised cost as a deduction from the gross carrying amount of the assets.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities 'at FVTPL' or 'other financial
liabilities'.

For all financial liabilities the amount presented on the statement of financial position represent ail
amounts payable including interest accruals.

Other financial liabilities

A financial liability is a contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial asset or! to
exchange financial assets or financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are
potentially unfavourable to the Bank or a contract that will or may be settled in the Bank's own
equity instruments and is a non-derivative contract for which the Bank is or may be obliged to
deliver a variable number of its own equity instruments, or a derivative contract over own equity
that will or may be settled other than by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash (or another
financial asset) for a fixed number of the Bank's own equity instruments.

Other financial liabilities, including deposits and borrowings, are initially measured at fair value,

net of transaction costs. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Financial instruments - upon adoption of HKFRS 9 as at 1 January 2018 - continued

Other financial liabilities - continued

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The EIR is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability, or,
where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition. For details
on EIR see the "net interest income section"” above.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Bank has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that the Bank will be required to settle that obligation, and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required to settle
the present obligation at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the risks and
uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows
estimated to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the present value of those cash
flows (where the effect of time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle a provision are expected to be
recovered from a third party, a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain that
reimbursement will be received and the amount of the receivable can be measured reliably.

Taxation
Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from profit
before tax because of items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and
items that are never taxable or deductible. The Bank's liability for current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying,‘| amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of
taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary differences
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other than in a business combination)
of assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the accounting

profit.
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOQUNTING POLICIES - continued
Taxation - continued

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period and
reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to
allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the
period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax consequences that would
follow from the manner in which the Bank's expects, at the end of the reporting period, to recover
or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the
same taxation authority and the Bank intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net

basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items that are
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the current and
deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Leases

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term,
except where another systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in which
economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into operating leases, such incentives are
recognised as a liability. The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a reduction of rental
expense on a straight-line basis, except where another systematic basis is more representative of
the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

Foreign currencies

I

In preparing the financial statements of the Bank, transactions in currencies other than the Bank's
functional currency (foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At each balance sheet date, monetary assets and liabilities that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-
monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the
rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not retranslated.
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3.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES - continued

Foreign currencies - continued

Exchange differences are recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise except for:

. exchange differences on transactions entered into to hedge certain foreign currency risks;
and
. exchange differences on monetary items receivable from or payable to a foreign operation

for which settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur in the foreseeable future
(therefore forming part of the net investment in the foreign operation), which are
recognised initially in other comprehensive income ("OCI") and reclassified from equity to
profit or loss on disposal or partial disposal of the net investment.

Retirement bcneﬁt costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme are recognised as expenses when employees
have rendered service entitling them to the contributions.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise balances with
maturity from the date of acquisition at or less than three months, including cash, short-term funds,
and placements with banks and other financial institutions.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Bank's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks and those activities involve the
analysis, evaluation, acceptance and management of some degree of risk or combination of risks.
The Bank's aim is therefore to achieve an appropriate balance between risk and retun and -
minimise potential adverse effects on the Bank's financial performance.

The Bank's risk management policies are designed to identify and analyse these risks, to set
appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor the risks and adherence to limits by means of
reliable and up-to-date information systems. The Bank regularly reviews its risk management
policies and systems to reflect changes in markets, products and emerging best practice.

Risk management is carried out by the Risk Committee under policies approved by the Board of
Directors. The Risk Committee identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks in close co-
operation with the Bank's operating units. The Board provides written principles covering specific
areas, such as foreign exchange risk, interest rate risk, credit risk, use of non-derivative financial
instruments. In addition, internal audit is responsible for the independent review of risk
management and the control environment. The most important types of risks from the use of
financial instruments are credit risk, market risk and liquidity risk. Market risk includes currency
risk, interest rate and other price risk.
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4.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued

Strategy in using financial instruments

By their nature, the Bank's activities are principally related to the use of financial instruments.
The Bank accepts deposits from customers for various periods, and seeks to earn interest margins
by investing these funds in high-quality assets. The Bank maintains sufficient liquidity to meet all
claims that might fall due.,

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that a customer or counterparty will default on its contractual obligation
resulting in financial loss to the Bank. The Bank's main income generating activity is lending to
customers and placement to other banks and therefore credit risk is a principal risk. Credit risk
mainly arises from loans and advances to customers and other banks (including related
commitments to lend such as loan), investments in debt securities and derivatives that are in an
asset position. The Bank considers all elements of credit risk exposure such as counterparty
default risk, geographical risk and sector risk for risk management purposes.

Credit risk management

The Bank's Credit, Asset and Liabilities Management Committee ("CALCO") is responsible for
managing the Bank's credit risk by:

. Ensuring that the Bank has appropriate credit risk practices, including an effective system
of internal control, to consistently determine adequate allowances in accordance with the
Bank's stated policies and procedures, HKFRS and relevant supervisory guidance.

. Identifying, assessing and measuring credit risk across the Bank, from an individual
instrument to a portfolio level.

. Creating credit policies to protect the Bank against the identified risks including the
requirements to obtain collateral from borrowers, to perform robust ongoing credit
assessment of borrowers and to continually monitor exposures against internal risk limits.

. Limiting concentrations of exposure by type of asset, counterparties, industry, credit rating,
geographic location efc.
|

. Establishing a robust control framework regarding the authorisation structure for the
approval and renewal of credit facilities.

. Developing and maintaining the Bank's risk grading to categorise exposures according to
the degree of risk of default. Risk grades are subject to regular reviews.

. Developing and maintaining the Bank's processes for measuring ECL including

monitoring of credit risk, incorporation of forward-looking information and the method
used to measure ECL.
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued

Credit risk management - continued

. Ensuring that the Bank has policies and procedures in place to appropriately maintain and
validate models used to assess and measure ECL.

« ' Establishing a sound credit risk accounting assessment and measurement process that
provides it with a strong basis for common systems, tools and data to assess credit risk and
to account for ECL. Providing advice, guidance and specialist skills to business units to
promote best practice throughout the Bank in the management of credit risk.

The internal audit function performs regular audits making sure that the established controls and
procedures are adequately designed and implemented.

Significant increase in credit rigsk

As explained in note 3, the Bank monitors all financial assets that are subject to impairment
requirements to assess whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. If there has been a significant increase in credit risk the Bank will measure the
expected credit loss allowance based on lifetime rather than 12-month ECL.

The Bank uses different criteria to determine whether credit risk has increased significantly per
portfolio of assets. The criteria used are both quantitative changes in PDs and credit default swap
("CDS") spread as well as qualitative indicators which are external credit rating, significant
adverse change in regulatory, economic or technological environment, adverse change in business
and financial conditions and changes in performance behaviour of borrower or portfolio.

The Bank presumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition when contractual payments are more than 30 days past due unless the Bank has
reasonable and supportable information that demonstrates otherwise.

The Bank has monitoring procedures in place to make sure that the criteria used to identify
significant increases in credit risk are effective, meaning that significant increase in credit risk is
identified before the exposure is defaulted or when the asset becomes 30 days past due.

The Bank has controls and procedures in place to identify when the credit risk of an asset
improves and the definition of significant increase in credit risk is no longer met. When this is the
case the asset may move back to stage 1 from stage 2, subject to payments being up to date and
the ability of the borrower to make future payments on time.

Measurement of ECL

The key inputs used for measuring ECL are:

» probability of default ("PD"); and
) loss given default ("LGD").
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued

Measurement of ECL - continued

As explained above these figures are generally derived from statistical models and other historical
external data and they are adjusted to reflect probability-weighted forward-looking information.

PD is an estimate of the likelihood of default over a given time horizon. It is estimated as at a
point in time. The calculation is based on statistical rating models, and assessed using rating tools -
tailored to the various categories of counterparties and exposures. These statistical models are
based on market data, as well as internal data comprising both quantitative and qualitative factors.
PDs are estimated considering the contractual maturities of exposures and estimated prepayment
rates. The estimation is based on current conditions, adjusted to take into account estimates of
future conditions that will impact PD.

LGD is an estimate of the loss arising on default. It is based on the difference between the
contractual cash flows due and those that the lender would expect to receive, taking into account
cash flows from any collateral. The LGD models for secured assets consider forecasts of future
collateral valuation taking into account sale discounts, time to realisation of collateral, cross
collateralisation and seniority of claim, cost of realisation of collateral and cure rates (i.e. exit
from non-performing status). LGD models for unsecured assets consider time of recovery,
recovery rates and seniority of claims. The calculation is on a discounted cash flow basis, where
the cash-flows are discounted by the original EIR of the loan.

The Bank measures ECL considering the risk of default over the maximum contractual period
(including extension options) over which the entity is exposed to credit risk and not a longer
period, even if contact extension or renewal is common business practice.

Credit quality

The Bank monitors credit risk per class of financial instrument. The table below outlines the
classes identified, as well as the financial statement line item and the note that provides an
analysis of the items included in the financial statement line for each class of financial instrument.

Class of financial instrument Financial statement line Note
Loans and advances to banks at Cash and balances with banks and other financial 12

amortised cost institutions
' Money at call and short notice
Placements with banks maturing between one and
twelve months
Loans and advances to customers at Advances to customers and other accounts 13
amortised cost
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued

Credit guality - continued

An analysis of the Bank's credit risk concentrations per class of financial asset is provided in the
following tables. For financial assets, the amounts in the table represent gross carrying amounts.
Loans and advances to banks at amortised cost represent cash and balances with banks and other
financial institutions, money at call and short notice and placements with banks maturing between
one and twelve months while loans and advances to customers at amortised cost represent term

loans granted to employees of the Bank.

Loans and advances to banks at amortised cost

Concentration by sector
- Hong Kong Monetary Authority ("HKMA")
- Foreign banks
- Local banks

Concentration by region
- Hong Kong
- United States
- United Kingdom
- Canada

Loans and advances to customers at amortised cost

2018
HK$

298,615,119
9,676,490
2,597,493,870

2017
HKS

546,522,979
9,898,122
2,285,189,817

2,905,785,479

2,841,610,918

2,896,108,989

2,831,712,796

8,362,185 8,436,020
829,783 875,234
484,522 586,868

2,905,785,479  2,841,610,918

1,166,500 917,500

There were no overdue, rescheduled and repossessed assets as at 31 December 2018 and

31 December 2017.

Investment in club membership at FVTPL

The maximum exposure to credit risk of the investment at FVTPL is its carrying amount of
HK$3,400,000 at 31 December 2018 (available-for-sale investment at 31 December 2017:

HK$3,400,000).

-

-

Collateral held as security . -

The Bank does not hold collateral or other credit enhancements associated with financial assets.
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4, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued
Market risk

The Bank takes on exposure to market risks, which is the risk that the fair value or future cash
flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market risks
arise from open positions in interest rate and currency, all of which are exposed to general and
specific market movements and changes in the level of volatility of market factors, such as foreign
exchange rates, interest rates, credit spreads, equity prices and commodity prices.

The Bank's market risk exposures mainly arise from the interest rate risk and foreign exchange
risk.

Management of market risk

The management of market risk is principally undertaken in treasury function using risk limits
approved by the Board of Directors. The Bank has dedicated standards, policies and procedures in
place to control and monitor the market risk. The market risks arise on the operation are assessed
and managed under the supervision of CALCO. The Bank has met all the de minimise exemption

criteria for calculation of market risk as set out in Banking (Capital) Rules issued by the Hong

Kong Monetary Authority.

Foreign exchange risk

The Bank undertakes certain transactions denominated in foreign currencies; hence exposures to
exchange rate fluctuations arise. Exchange rate exposures are managed within approved policy
parameters utilising forward foreign exchange contracts where appropriate. The Board of
Directors sets limits on the level of exposure by currency and in total for both overnight and intra-
day positions, which are monitored daily.

The following table illustrates the carrying amount of the Bank's foreign currency denominated
monetary assets and liabilities. It indicates the concentration of currency risk at the end of the

reporting period.
X HK$ USss GBP CAD Total
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
2018
ASSETS
Cash and balances with banks
and other financial institutions 305,754 8,361 830 484 315,429
Money at call and short notice 1,019,756 78,924 84,650 7,801 1,191,131
Placements with banks maturing
between one and twelve months . 1,298,941 14,814 88,399 - 1,402,154
Advances to customers and other
accounts 8,413 ¢ 366 177 ) 8,957
Financial asset at fair value through
profit or loss 3,400 - - - 3,400
2,636,264 102,465 174,056 8,286 2,921,071
LIABILITIES
Deposits from customers 1,854,043 87,330 172,410 6,350 2,120,333
Other accounts and provisions 3,047 230 96 - 3,373
1,857,090 87,560 172,506 6,550 2,123,706
Net on-balance sheet position 779,174 14,905 1,550 1,736 797,365
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Foreign exchange risk - continued

HKS USsg GBP CAD Total
HK$'000 HEK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS§'000
2017
ASSETS
Cash and balances with banks
and other financial institutions 552,174 8,436 875 587 562,072
Money at call and short notice 710,000 29,640 83,880 8,377 831,897
Placements with banks maturing
between one and twelve months 1,350,000 4,680 97,049 - 1,451,729
Advances to customers and other
accounts 4,207 57 99 1 4,364
Available-for-sale investments 3,400 - - - 3,400
2,619,781 42,813 181,903 8,965 2,853,462
Liabilities
Deposits from customers 1,850,906 28,265 180,601 7,081 2,066,853
Other accounts and provisions 1,773 16 47 - 1,836
1,852,679 28,281 180,648 7,081 2,068,689
Net on-balance sheet position 767,102 14,532 1,255 1,884 784,773

Foreign currency sensitivity

The Bank is exposed to US$ and no sensitivity analysis is prepared as the management considered
that the effect is insignificant under the linked exchange rate system.

In addition, the following table details the Bank's sensitivity to a 5% increase and decrease in HK$
against GBP and CAD. The 5% is the sensitivity rate used when reporting the foreign currency
risk internally to key management personnel and represent management's assessment of the
reasonably possible change in foreign exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currencies denominated monetary items and adjust their translation at the year
end at 5% change in foreign currency rates. For a 5% weakening/strengthening of the HKS$
against the relevant currencies, the impact on the profit after tax would be as follows:

Impact
2018 2017 [
HK$'000 HK$'000

Profit after tax 137/(137) 131/(131)
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4. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - contihued

Interest rate risk

Cash flow interest rate risk is the risk that the future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. Fair value interest rate risk is the risk that
the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The
Bank takes on exposure to the effects of fluctuations in the prevailing levels of market interest
rates on cash flow risks. Interest margins may increase as a result of such changes but may reduce
or create losses in the event that unexpected movements arise. Limits are set on the level of
mismatch of interest rate repricing that may be undertaken, which is monitored regularly.

The Bank measures the exposure of its assets and liabilities to fluctuations in interest rates
primarily by way of gap analysis which provides the Bank with a static view of the maturity and
re-pricing characteristics of these positions. The daily maturity profile reports are prepared by
classifying all assets and liabilities into various time period categories according to contracted
maturities or anticipated repricing dates whichever is earlier. The difference in the amount of
assets and liabilities maturing or being re-priced in any time period category would then give the
Bank an indication of the extent to which the Bank is exposed to the risk of potential changes in
the net interest income.

The tables below summarise the Bank's exposure to interest rate risk. Included in the tables are
the Bank's financial assets and financial liabilities at carrying amounts, categorised by the earlier
of contractual repricing or maturity dates.

Non-
Upto 1-3 3-12 -5 Qver interest
1 month months months years 5 vears bearing Total

HK$'000 HKS000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$000 HKE000 HK$000
At 31 December 2018

ASSETS
Cash and balances with banks and

other financial institutions - - - - 315,429 315,429

Money at call and short notice 1,191,131 - - - - - 1,191,131
Placements with banks maturing
between one and twelve months - 1,312,264 89,890 - . - 1,402,154
Advances to customers and other
accounts 4,036 3,298 753 771 99 - 8,957
Financial asset at fair value
through profit or loss - - - - - 3,400 3,400
1
1,195,167 1,315,562 90,643 77 99 318,829 2,921,071
LIABILITIES . .
Deposits from customers 1,365,145 621,824 - - - 133,364 2,120,333
Other accounts and provisions - - - - - 3,373 3,373
1,365,145 621,824 . - - 136,737 2,123,706
Total interest sensitivity gap (169,978) 693,738 90,643 771 99 182,092 797,365
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT - continued

Interest rate risk - continued

Non-
Upto -3 3-12 1-5 Over interest
1 month months months years 5 years bearing Total

HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$0G00 HKE000 HK$'000
At 31 December 2017

ASSETS
Cash and balances with banks and

other financial institutions - - - ‘ - 562,072 562,072

Money at call and short notice 831,897 - - - - - 831,897
Placements with banks maturing
between one and twelve months - 1,261,729 190,000 - - - 1,451,729
Advances to customners and other
accounts 1,440 1,656 566 662 40 - 4,364
Availablc-fo;-sale investments - - - - - 3,400 3,400
833,337 1,263,385 190,566 662 40 565,472 2,853,462
LIABILITIES
Deposits from customers 1,417,973 524,838 - - - 124,042 2,066,853
Other accounts and provisions - - - - - 1,836 1,836
1,417,973 524,838 - - - 125,878 2,068,689
Total interest sensitivity gap (584,636} 738,547 190,566 662 40 439,594 784,773

Interest rate sensitivity

The sensitivity analysis below has been determined based on the exposure to floating interest rates
at the end of the reporting period. The analysis is prepared assuming the financial instruments
outstanding at the end of the reporting period were outstanding for the whole year. A 25 basis
point (2017: 25 basis points) increase is used when reporting interest rate risk internally to
management and represents management's assessment of the reasonably possible charge in interest
rates.

If interest rates had been 25 basis points (2017: 25 basis points) higher and all other variables
were held constant, the impact on the profit after tax, mainly attributable to the Bank's exposure to
interest rates on its variable rate customer deposits, would be as follows:

1 Impacts
\ ‘ 2018 2017
' ' HKS'000 HKS$'000
Profit after tax (1,658) (1,997)
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Liguidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Bank does not have sufficient financial resources to meet its
obligations as they fall due, or will have to do so at an excessive cost. This risk arises from
mismatches in the timing of cash flows which is inherent in all banking operations and can be
affected by a range of market-wide events.

Management of liquidity risk

Management is responsible for monitoring the Bank's liquidity position, and does so through the
periodic review of the statutory liquidity maintenance ratio, the maturity profile of assets and
liabilities, loan-to-deposit ratio and inter-bank transactions. Liquidity policy is monitored by
management and reviewed regularly by the Risk Committee and Board of Directors of the Bank.
The Bank's policy is to maintain a conservative level of liquid funds on a daily basis so that the
Bank is prepared to meet its obligations when they fall due in the normal course of business and to
satisfy statutory liquidity maintenance ratio requirements, and also to deal with any funding crises
that may arise. Limits are set on the minimum proportion of maturing funds available to meet all
the calls on cash resources such as overnight deposits, current accounts and on the minimum Ievel
of inter-bank and other borrowing facilities that should be in place to cover withdrawals at
unexpected levels of demand.

The Bank's management sets internal target levels in respect of the daily and monthly average
liquidity maintenance ratios: The Bank's accountant is responsible for monitoring these ratios and,
where a liquidity position falls under the internal limits, the accountant reports his findings to the
management who decides the appropriate corrective actions to be taken.

Liguidity table

The following table details the Bank's remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative
financial liabilities. The tables below have been drawn up based on the undiscounted contractual
maturities of the financial liabilities including interest that will accrue to those liabilities except
where the Bank is entitled and intends to repay the liability before its maturity.

3 months
Less than 1-3 0} 1-3 Over Carrying
1 month months . 1year years 5 years Total amount
HK$'000 HK$'000 i HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
As at 31 December 2018
Deposits from customers 1,499,949 623,338 - - - 2,123,287 2,120,333
Other payables 2,885 488 - - - 3,373 3,373
1,502,834 623,826 - - - 2,126,660 2,123,706
As at 31 December 2017
Depaosits from customers 1,542,244 525,309 - - - 2,067,553 2,006,853
Other payables 1,700 136 - - - 1,836 1,836
1,543,944 525,445 - - - 2,069,389 2,068,689
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Off-balance sheet items

The dates of the contractual amounts of the Bank's off-balance sheet financial instruments that
commit it to extend credit to customers and other facilities, financial guarantees (based on the
earliest contractual maturity date) are summarised in the table below.

No
Jater than
1 year 1-5 years Total
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
At 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017
Guarantee, acceptances and other

financial facilities 3,490 - 3,490

Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity

The maturity ahalysis based on the remaining period at the end of the reporting period to the
contractual maturity date in accordance with the guideline issued by the Hong Kong Monetary
Authority is shown below.

Maturity Date
Three months  One year  Five years

One or less or less or less
Repayable month but over butover  but over Over Carrying
on demand or less one month three months one vear  five years  Undated Amount

HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKF000 HKS$'000
At 31 Decentber 2018

ASSETS
Cash and balances with banks and

other financial institutions 315,429 - - - - - - 315,429
Money at call and short notice - 1,191,131 - - - . - - 1,191,131
Placemenis with banks maturing

between one and twelve months - - 1,312,264 89,890 - - - 1,402,154
Advances to customers and other

accounts - 4,036 3,298 753 771 99 - 8,957

_ Financial asset at fair value through

profit or loss - - - - - - 3,400 3,400
Intangible asset - - - - - - 210 210
Deferred tax assets - - - - - - 245 245
Prepayment - - - 77 - - - 77
Equipment and leasehold .

improvements - - - - 873 - - 873

315,42¢ 1,195,167 1,315,562 80,720 1,644 99 3,855 2,922476
LIABILITIES
Deposits from customers 928,973 569,536 621,824 - - - - 2,120,333
Other accounts and provisions 1,769 1,116 488 - - - 1,442 4815
Tax payable - - - 1,937 - - - 1,937
930,742 570,652 622,312 1,937 - - 1,442 2,127,085

Net liquidity gap (615,313) 624,515 693,250 88,783 1,644 9¢ 2,413 795,391
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Analysis of assets and liabilities by remaining maturity - continued

Maturity Date

Three months  One year  Five years
One or less or less or less
Repayable month but over but over  but over Carrying
on demand or less one month three months one year five years Undated Amount
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$000 HKS$000 HK$000 HK$O000 HK$'000
At 31 December 2017
ASSETS
Cash and balances with banks and
other financial institutions 562,072 - - - - - - 562,072
Money at call and short natice - 831,897 - - - - - 811,897
Placements with banks maturing
between one and twelve months - - 1,261,729 190,000 - - - 1,451,729
Advances to customers and other
accounts - 1,440 1,656 566 662 40 - 4,364
Available-for-sale investments - - - - - - 3,400 3,400
Intangible asset - - - - - 210 210
Deferred tax assets - - - 245 245
Equipment and leasehold
improvements - - - - - -
562,072 833,337 1,263,385 190,566 662 40 3,855 2,853,917
LIABILITIES
Deposits from customers 1,081,879 460,136 524,838 - - - - 2,066,853
Other accounts and provisions 1,523 177 i36 - - - 1,442 3278
Tax payable - - - 437 - - - 437
1,083,402 460,313 524,974 437 - - 1,442 2,070,568
Net liquidity gap (521,330) 373,024 738411 190,129 662 40 2,413 783,349

Fair value of financial assets and liabilities

The fair value of other financial assets and other financial liabilities are determined in accordance
with generally accepted pricing models on discounted cash flow analysis.

The directors considered that the carrying amounts of financial assets and financial liabilities
recorded at amortised cost in the financial statements are approximately their fair values.

Capital management

The Bank has adopted a policy of maintaining a strong capital base to:

- comply with the capital requirements under the Banking (Capital) Rules of the Banking
Ordinan?e; and

b

- support the Bank's stability so as to provide reasonable retumns for shareholders.

Capital adequacy ratio, computed as a ratio of total regulatory capital to the risk-weighted assets,
has remained well above the statutory minimuin ratio for the past two years.

Capital adequacy position and the use of regulatory capital are monitored closely by the Bank's
management, employing techniques based on the Banking (Capital) Rules. The required
information is filed with the Hong Kong Monetary Authority on a quarterly basis in the form of a
statistical return.

The Bank has an established business planning process to assess the adequacy of its capital to
support current and future activities. The process states the Bank's capital adequacy goals in
relation to risk, taking into account its strategic focus and business plan.
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3. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

This note provides information about how the Bank determines fair values of various financial

assets and financial liabilities.

Some of the Bank's financial instruments are measured at fair value for financial reporting
purposes. In estimating the fair value, the Bank uses market-observable data to the extent it is
available. Where Level 1 inputs are not available, the Bank measures the fair value with reference

to the quote from second hand market.

Fair value measurements recognised in the statement of financial position

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments that are measured subsequent to
initial recognition at fair value, grouped into Levels 1 to 3 based on the degree to which the fair

value is observable.

31 December 2018

Financial asset at FVTPL
- ¢club membership

31 December 2017

Available-for-sale investments
- club membership

Fair value

Level 3

HK$

Total
fair value
HKS$

3,400,000

3,400,000

During the current year, there was no transfers of financial instruments between Level 1 and Level

2.

In estimating the fair value of the club membership classified as Level 2, the fair value is arrived
at with reference to the quote from secondary market. The financial asset at FVTPL (2017:
available-for-sale investments) were measured at market value as at 31 December 2018.

i

6. INTEREST INCOME

Interest on deposits with banks
Interest on advances to customers

2018 2017
HKS$ HK$
38,865,802 19,697,348

791 527
38,866,593 - 19,697,875
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7. INTEREST EXPENSE

Interest on deposits from customers

8. OTHER OPERATING INCOME

Dividends from unlisted available-for-sale investments
Fees and commission income
Other income

9. OPERATING EXPENSES

Auditor's remuneration

Depreciation and amortisation of equipment and leasehold

improvements

Net exchange loss arising from foreign currencies position

Directors' emoluments
- fees
- other emoluments
Other operating expenses
Operating lease payments
Staff costs
- salaries and bonus
- contributions to Mandatory Provident Fund

10. IMPAIRMENT LOSSES

Cash and balances with banks and other financial institutions

Money at call and short notice
Placements with banks maturing one to twelve months

Advances to customers

2018 2017
HK$ HK$
8,524,924 2,659,596
2018 2017
HK$ HKS$

- 2,820,000
34,875 32,950
8,445 398,794
43,320 3,251,744
2018 2017
HK$ HKS$
650,000 550,000
51,365 -
74,462 -
450,000 420,000
1,288,000 1,120,000
3,254,813 2,772,670
1,321,752 1,266,549
7,077,428 6,632,380
224,989 205,751
14,392,809 12,967,350
2018 2017
HK$ HKS
557 -
12,605 -
276,123 -
10,715 -
300,000 -
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1.

12.

INCOME TAX EXPENSE
The tax charge comprises:
Hong Kong Profits Tax

- Current year
- Overprovision in prior years

2018
HK$

2,508,318

(59,223)

2,449,095

2017
HK$

730,000

730,000

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the profit per the statement of profit or loss and

other comprehensive income as follows:

Profit before tax

Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax rate (Note)
Tax effect of income not taxable
Overprovision in respect of prior years
Others

2018 2017

HKS HKS$
15,692,180 248,250,580
2,424,210 40,961,346
; (40,218,405)

(59,223) -

84,108 (12,941)
2,449,095 730,000

Note: In 2018, Hong Kong Profits Tax was calculated at 8.25% on estimated profits up to
HK$2,000,000 and 16.5% on any part of estimated profits over HK$2,000,000. In 2017,
Hong Kong Profits Tax was calculated at 16.5% of the entire estimated profit.

CASH AND BALANCES AND PLACEMENTS WITH AND LOANS AND ADVANCES TO

BANKS

At amortised cost

Cash and balances with banks and other financial institutions
- Cash ] . >
- Due from HKMA -
- Interbank Clearing Account
- Due from foreign banks
- Due from local banks - on demand
Less: Impairment losses - Stage |

Money at call and short notice
Less: Impairment losses - Stage 1

2018 2017
HK$ HKS$
4,056,631 1,883,933
298,615,119 546,522,979
352,492 2,203,076
9,676,490 9,898,122
2,790,691 1,563,510
(62,798) -
315,428,625 562,071,620
1,191,418,048 831,897,487
(286,592) -
1,191,131,456 831,897,487
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12.

13.

14,

CASH AND BALANCES AND PLACEMENTS WITH AND LOANS AND ADVANCES TO
BANKS - continued

2018 2017
HK$ HK$
Placements with banks maturing
- between 1-3 months 1,313,285,130 1,261,728,820
- between 3-6 months 80,000,000 120,000,000
- between 6-12 months 10,000,000 70,000,000
Less: Impairment losses - Stage 1 (1,130,610) -
1,402,154,520 1,451,728,820
Total 2,908,714,601 2,845,697,927
ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS AND OTHER ACCOUNTS
The advances to customers and other accounts comprise:
2018 2017
HK$ HKS
Advances to staff 1,166,500 917,500
Less: Impairment allowance - stage 1 (20,000) -
1,146,500 917,500
Interest receivable 7,810,521 3,446,178

8,957,021 4,363,678

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS/AVAILABLE-FOR-
SALE INVESTMENTS

2018 2017
HK$ HK$
Unlisted securities:
- club membership (financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss) K ' 3,400,000 -
- club membership (available-for-sale in\[estmenté) - 3,400,000
Total 3,400,000 3,400,000

The unlisted securities is issued by a corporate entity in Hong Kong. As at 31 December 2018,
the fair value of club membership remained unchanged with reference to the quote from secondary

market,
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15.

16.

17.

DEFERRED TAXATION
The followings are the major deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities recognised by the
Bank.

Accelerated Provision for

tax long service
depreciation payments Total
HK$ HKS HK$
At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017
and 31 December 2018 (1,391) 246,785 245,394

The directors consider movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the current and prior
years are not significant,

EQUIPMENT AND LEASEHOLD IMPROVEMENTS

Leasehold
improvements Equipment Total
HKS HK$ HKS
COST
At 1 January 2017 and 31 December 2017 1,472,938 738,924 2,211,862
Additions - 924,575 924,575
At 31 December 2018 ‘ 1,472,938 1,663,499 3,136,437
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
AND AMORTISATION .

At 1 January 2017 and 31 December 2017 1,472,938 738,924 2,211,862
Additions - 51,365 51,365
At 31 December 2018 1,472,938 790,289 2,263,227
CARRYING AMOUNT
At 31 December 2018 - 873,210 873,210

At 31 December 2017 - - .

: |
The above items of equipment are depreciated and amortised on a straight-line basis at 33.3% per

annum.
’

DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS

2018 2017

HKS HK?$
Current accounts ' 133,364,537 124,041,599
Savings deposits 795,608,501 957,837,010
Time, call and notice deposits 1,191,359,827 984,974,604

2,120,333,265  2,066,853,213
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I8.

19.

20.

OTHER ACCOUNTS AND PROVISIONS

2018 2017
HKS HKS$
Interests payable to time, call and notice deposits 1,604,445 313,403
Provisions for long service payments 1,441,633 1,441,633
Other accounts:
- Accounts payable 1,480,590 ‘ 1,097,394
- Cashier orders 261,251 395,467
- Gift Cheques : 18,500 21,500
- Others 8,346 8,767
1,768,687 1,523,128
4,814,765 3,278,164
SHARE CAPITAL
2018 017
Number of Number of
shares Amount shares Amount
HK$ HK$
[ssued and fully paid:
Ordinary shares
At beginning and end of year 3,000,000 300,000,000 3,000,000 300,000,000

There was no movement in the Bank's share capital for both years.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
The Bank has undertaken a number of transactions, which include principally the acceptance of
deposits, with its related parties, including key management personnel and their close family

members and companies controlled or significantly influenced by them.

During the year, the Bank entered into the following transactions with rela!ted parties:

v o 2018 2017

b . HK$ HKS$
Interest expense on deposits 8,375,123 2,625,319
Rental and other related expenses 1,321,752 1,266,549
Gain on disposal on an available-for-sale-investment - 240,927,907
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20.

21.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS - continued

At the end of the reporting period, the Bank had the following outstanding balances with related
parties:

2018 2017

HKS$ HKS$
Current accounts 120,294,447 115,990,283
Savings deposits 711,384,489 906,262,078
Time, call and notice deposits 1,174,817,037 977,058,968

2,006,495,973 1,999,311,329

The balance of current accounts is non-interest bearing and repayable on demand. The balance of
savings deposits is interest bearing at 0.125% (2017: 0.01%) and repayable on demand. The
balance of time, call and notice deposits is interest bearing ranging from 0.01% to 2.20% (2017:
0.05% to 0.90%) with maturity from within one month to three months.

The transactions were carried out on terms similar to those applicable to transactions with
unrelated parties.

The Bank had issued letters of guarantee, majority to utility companies in lieu of deposits

amounting to HK$3,490,000 (2017: HK$3,490,000) for a company connected with directors of
the Bank and of which the Bank was a shareholder before the disposal of interest during the year.

Key management compensation

2018 2017
HK$ HKS$
Salaries and allowances (including directors’ fees) 5,378,380 4,636,760

There was no sign-on awards and severance payments provided during the year ended
31 December 2018 (2017: HK$Nil).
OFF-BALANCE SHEET EXPOSURES l

At the end of the reporting period, the Bank had the following outstanding contractual amounts of
contingent liabilities and commitments: '

2018 2017
HKS$ HK$
Direct credit substitutes _ 3,490,000 3,490,000

The credit risk weighted amount of contingent liabilities and commitments was HK$Nil (2017:
HKS$Nil).
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22.

23.

24,

25.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLAN

The Bank operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the "Scheme") for all qualifying
employees. The assets of the Scheme are held separately from those of the Bank, in funds under
the control of trustees. The Bank contributes 5% of relevant payroll costs to the Scheme, and the
related contribution is matched by the respective employee.

Contributions payable to the Scheme by the Bank for the year amounting to HK$224,989 (2017:
HK$205,751) had been charged to the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

At the end of the reporting period, the Bank had commitments for future minimum lease payments
under non-cancellable operating leases for office premises which fall due as follows:

2018 2017

HK$ HK$
Within one year 521,300 1,251,120
In the second to fifth years inclusive - 521,300
521,300 1,772,420

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by the Bank for its office premises. The
current lease will expire in May 2019 and rent is fixed for the lease period.

DIVIDENDS

Subsequent to the end of the reporting periods, a final dividend in respect of the year ended 31

December 2018 of HK$0.50 (2017: Nil) per ordinary share, in an aggregate amount of
HK$1,500,000 (2017: Nil), has been declared by the directors of the Bank.

CLASSIFICATIONS

: ! :
Certain reclassifications have been made to the financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2017 to conform to the classifications used in the financial statements for the year

ended 31 December 2018.
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TAT YAU BANK, LIMITED

UNAUDITED SUPPLEMENTARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2018

The unau_ldited supplementary financial information regarding corporate governance and other financial
information disclosed pursuant to the Banking (Disclosures) Rules issued by the Hong Kong Monetary
Authority is as follows:

l.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board of Directors is assisted by the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Risk
Committee, Nomination Committee ,Executive Committee and Credit, Asset and Liability
Management Committee in corporate governance matters.

The Audit Committee consists of three independent non-executive directors and one non-
executive director who report regularly to the Board. It monitors compliance with policies
approved by the Board and other internal and statutory regulations. It provides an oversight of the
Bank's internal and external auditors and thereby assists the Board in providing independent
review of the effectiveness of the financial reporting process and internal control systems of the
Bank.

The Bank has established a Remuneration Committee with specific written Terms of Reference
which deal clearly with its authority and duties. The Remuneration Committee consists of three
independent non-executive directors and one non-executive director who report regularly to the
Board. The Remuneration Committee is responsible for making recommendations to the Board
on the Bank's policy, practices and structure for all remunerations of Directors and members of
Senior Management, and determining their specific remuneration packages. The Bank will ensure
that no Director or any of his associates is involved in deciding his own remuneration and at least
an annual review of the Bank's remuneration system and its operation is carried out independently
of management. During the year 2018, two meetings were held and attended by all committee

mermbers.

The Remuneration Committee is provided with sufficient resources to discharge its duties. The
following is a summary of the work performed during the year:

(1) Reviewed the remuneration systems and its operations of the Bank;

(i)  Reviewed annual salary payment for the year;

(111) Rleviewed the remuneration of senior management, key personnel and other staff; and
(iv)  Reviewed the remuneration policy.

[ 3
The Bank has reviewed its remuneration policy for all employees of the Bank. The remuneration
policy covers guidelines and procedures that are commensurate with the business of the Bank. It
also supports the Bank's ethical values, objectives, strategies and control environment. The
remuneration structure is designed to encourage employee behavior that supports the Bank's risk
management framework and long-term financial soundness. There was no change to our
remuneration pelicy during the year.
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1. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE - continued

The remuneration package of the Bank consists entirely of fixed salary payable in cash only. In
considering the remuneration structure, the Bank has regarded to the seniority, role,
responsibilities and activities of the employees and the need to promote behavior among
employees that supports the Bank's risk management framework and long-term financial
soundness. '

A systematic role evaluation methodology is used to establish each employee’s appropriate level
of remuneration. By means of an annual/periodic performance review, the degree to which each
employee is satisfying the requirements of the role and the degree to which established
performance objectives have been achieved are to be assessed. The Bank will reward employees'
achievement by directly linking pay to performance outcomes. Poor performance may affect the
level of remuneration increment in the coming year.

The senior management consisting of eleven persons and key personnel of four persons were paid
with fixed remuneration in cash of HK$3,561,360 and HK$1,817,020 respectively during the year,
totalling HK$5,378,380 (2017: HK $4,636,760). We did not provide other form of remuneration
including guaranteed bonuses, sign-on awards and severance payments during the year.

The Risk Committee stands at the highest level of the Bank’s risk governance structure under the
Board. It consists of three independent non-executive directors and one non-executive director.
The Risk Committee provides direct oversight over the formulation if the Bank’s risk appetite and
ensures that the risk appetite is reflected in the policies and procedures. The Risk Committee also
regularly reviews the Bank’s risk management framework and ensures that all important risk-
related tasks are performed according to established policies with appropriate resources.

The Nomination Committee is responsible for recommending to the Board on relevant matters
relating to identify, select, nominate and recommend suitable individuals to the Board for
directorships and senior management positions. The Nomination Committee also performs
evaluation of the Board performance and Directors’ contribution to the effectiveness of the Board.

The Nomination Committee comprises four members and three of them are independent non-
executive directors and one non-executive director.

The Executive Committee consists of at least three, but no more than five executive directors
including the Chairman. The Committee ensures the continuity in the management of the
business and affairs of the Bank and carries the full power and authority of the Board on matters
requiring urgent approval or other action of the Board in between board meetings.

The Credit, Asset and Liabilities Management Committee comprises the Managing Director,
Alternative Chief Executive, the General Manager, the Manager, the Treasurer and the Heads of
Accounts and Operations. The Committee is established to implement and maintain the overall
risk management framework relating to credit, liquidity positions, cash flows, maturities, interest
rate as well as exchange rate trends and compliance functions. It also acts as support for the
Remuneration Committee.

The directors of the Bank are of the opinion that the Bank has complied with the Supervisory
Policy Manual "Corporate Governance of Locally Incorporated Als" issued by the Hong Kong
Monetary Authority.

2.
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2. SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

(a)

(b)

(c)

By geographical area

All the business operations of the Bank are in Hong Kong.

By class of business

Thf.: Bank operates predominantly in the commercial banking business.
Advances to customers - by industry sectors

The information concerning advances to customers by industry sectors has been classified
according to the usage of the loan and is stated gross of any Provisions.

2018 2017
HKS$ HK$
Loans for use in Hong Kong
Individuals - other private purposes 1,166,500 917,500

The loan borrowers are predominantly located in Hong Kong.

3. OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION

(a)

Liquidity position

The average liquidity maintenance ratio is the simple average of each calendar month's
average liquidity maintenance ratio. Each monthly average liquidity maintenance ratio is
calculated as the ratio of the average liquefiable assets to the average qualifying liabilities
after relevant deductions in accordance with the Banking (Liquidity) Rules.

2018 2017
% %
Average liquidity maintenance ratio for the year 75.66 71.25



TAT YAU BANK, LIMITED

3.

OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION - continued

(b)

(©)

(d)

Capital adequacy

Capital adequacy ratios were calculated on a solo basis, in accordance with the Banking
(Capital) Rules (the "Capital Rules") issued by the HKMA. The ratios were compiled in
accordance with the amended Capital Rules for the implementation of the "Basel III"
capital accord. The Bank has adopted the basic approach for the calculation of the risk-
weighted assets for credit risk and the basic indicator approach for the calculation of
operational risk.

2018 2017
% %
Total capital ratio 139.10 157.29
Tier 1 capital ratio 139.08 157.27
Common Equity Tier 1 capital ratio 139.08 157.27

The detailed disclosures required by the Banking (Disclosure) Rules will be disclosed
under "Regulatory Disclosures” on the website of the Bank (www.tybhk.com.hk).

Leverage ratio

The bank is required under the Banking (Disclosure) Rules to disclose its leverage ratio.
Leverage ratio was calculated on a solo basis, in accordance with the Capital Rules issued

by the HKMA.

31.12.2018 31.12.2017
% Yo
Leverage ratio 27.18 27.41

The detailed disclosures can be viewed under "Regulatory Disclosures" on the website of
the Bank (www.tybhk.com.hk).

Capital conservation buffer ratio

The Capital conservation buffer ratio for calculating the Bank's buffer level is 1.875% as at
31 December 2018 (2017: 1.250%) in accordance with the Banking (Capital) Rules.
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3.

OTHER FINANCIAL INFORMATION - continued
(e) Countercyclical capital buffer ratio

The countercyclical capital buffer ratio was compiled in accordance with the Banking
(Capital) Rules.

31.12.2018 31.12.2017
% %
Countercyclical capital buffer ratio 1.875 1.250

The detailed disclosures can be viewed under "Regulatory Disclosures” on the website of
the Bank (www.tybhk.com.hk).

63 Capital charge for operational risk

The capital charge for operational risk calculated in accordance with the basic indicator
approach at the end of the reporting period is:

2018 2017
HK$'000 HK$'000
Capital charge for operational risk 3,459 2,691

OPERATIONAL RISK

Operational risk is the risk of unexpected losses attributable to human error, systems failures,
fraud, or inadequate internal controls and procedures.

Risk management is carried out by the Risk Committee under the policies approved by the Board
of Directors to manage operational risks through proper human resources policies, delegation of
authorities, segregation of duties, and timely and accurate management information,

~ A comprehensive contingency plan is available to ensure that key business functions continue and |

normal operations are restored effectively and efficiently in the event of business interruption.
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5. INTERNATIONAL CLAIMS

The information of international claims discloses exposures to counterparties on which the
ultimate risk lies, and is derived according to the location of the counterparties after taking into
account any transfer of risk. In general, such transfer of risk takes place if the claims are
guaranteed by a party in a country which is different from that of the counterparty or if the claims
are on an overseas branch of a bank whose head office is located in another country. Only
countries constituting 10% or more of the aggregated international claims are disclosed.

Banks

HK$'000

As at 31 December 2018
Developed countries 680,617
- of which: Japan 471,751
Canada 200,504
Offshore centres 281,180
- of which: Hong Kong 181,125
Singapore 100,055
Developing Asia and Pacific : 989,077
- of which: China 483,710
Taiwan ' 244,764
Malaysia 260,603

As at 31 December 2017
Developed countries 409,456
- of which: Japan 400,433
Offshore centres 189,407
- of which: Hong Kong 189,407
Developing Asia and Pacific | 797,369
- of which: China 562,771

Malaysia %00:22 1
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6. CURRENCY RISK

Foreign currency exposure arising from non-trading and structural positions which constitute 10%
or more of the total net position in all foreign currencies are as follows:

At 31 December 2018

(Equivalent in HKY)
USD GBP CAD Total
Spot assets 102,483,992 174,151,272 8,288,570 284,923,834
Spot liabilities (87.560.425) (172,505,696) (6,549,815) (266,615,936)
Net long position 14,923,567 1,645,576 1,738,755 18,307,898

Net structural position - - -

At 31 December 2017

(Equivalent in HK$)
SD GBP CAD Total
Spot assets 42,813,301 181,903,196 8,965,748 233,682,245
Spot liabilities (28.280.419) (180,648,106) (7,081,677) (216,010,202)
Net long position 14,532,882 1,255,090 1,884,071 17,672,043

Net structural position - - - -

7. OVERDUE AND RESCHEDULED LOANS AND OTHER ASSETS
As at the end of the reporting period, the Bank had no overdue or rescheduled loans and other

assets.

8. MAINLAND ACTIVITIES

|
As at the end of the reporting period, the Bank had no non-bank exposures in the Mainland.

5. COMPLIANCE WITH DISCLOSURE REQUIREMENTS ™~

In preparing the financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2018, the Bank has fully
complied with the requirements set out in the Banking (Disclosure) Rules issued by the Hong
Kong Monetary Authority.
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2018 2017
T T T 7T
BRAAR T ] 137/(137) 131/(131)
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JEE T 5 R 2 BT 7K P Bl 5 B 2R 4 R . 522 TR e D Bl bt LI RT R AR T
AP LA 2 S b B RS TR - R gl v RE AR 2 BT MR BA AT ROE IR, A6 E

LILSE G

ASERAT R P e BUARAE R AR T B e AR Py, R BRI, DR BEAERAT
ZRASE IRV BTG D S EET (A R B R s RE B BRI B0E H ek B A &
TRALHR R AV B0 H s TR e B H M A R, DU Rl AT P

P S B R e (E B 2 K BB RRZE R, SRR AR ERAT AR R S SON B A O
JIv 5 10 L

TR FE AR SRAT B < R R R, GFEASRAT S RE PE ke B B ARTNE, DLAAIE
FET E LA H Py Hh s mr 7 8
1{EH 1{AH 3MEAH 14

gUT Z3EH FE12fAH ESHE  SFEULE AFHE aE
BT WWTIor WM Too MW Tor W Tot WWTot W Tou

A 2018412 H 31 H

BE
JEAF B4 S BLERAT K
HoAth & RS 45 17 - 315,429 315,429
R HA &% %6 3 5] 347 7K 1,191,131 - 1,191,131
—&+ A REZ
T B[R] 3E A7k - 1,312,264 89,890 - - - 1,402,154
BB HANARTE 4,036 3,298 753 771 99 ; 8,957
DL SR B R T H s E)
FIANBE T ESRE E - - - - - 3,400 3,400
1,195,167 1,315,562 90,643 771 99 318,829 2,921,071
=L
BIPAER 1,365,145 621,824 - - - 133,364 2,120,333
oA R TH S F53 4 - - - - - 3,373 3,373
1,365,145 621,824 - - - 136,737 2,123,706
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RUF 3 E12fAH ES4E  SELE AIHHE  AF
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A2017¢ 12 H31H

B
AT IR 4 J BLERAT I
HAth &Rt 45 17 - 562,072 562,072
B HA B2 S 1A TR SE A7k 831,897 - 831,897
—Z+ AN
SE AR S A7k - 1,261,729 190,000 - - - 1,451,729
BB HANARTE 1,440 1,656 566 662 40 ; 4,364
AT R - - - - - 3,400 3,400
833,337 1,263,385 190,566 662 40 565472 2,853,462
=0
BPER 1,417,973 524,838 - - - 124,042 2,066,853
Ho AR TE K 5 - - - - - 1,836 1,836
1,417,973 524,838 - - - 125,878 2,068,689
P B R (584,636) 738,547 190,566 662 40 439,594 784,773
FIF RS

NNV 73 T T FE A S K T B R B A RS, AR A RS R R AE 4 T A
BAREEE N —E M AREE . PG 25 28 (2017: 2538 , BRI R FE R TR
RO, EHEAE NIRRT R R 2 A gE RS

PRGN 25 JEEL (2017 25 3EED WL E R EAEE, KN AFZ RSB 2 0m 5
B AN 2 BTN

A
2018 2017
T T T
ok A0 4% i Al (1,658) (1,997)
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AR B . DA b U G pR S B e R Py R PR B O S 20, AT TG SR AT S T 2 [ A R
b H 32 A8 T35 b — RVNFAF R 2.

LN 1 o 3

R G AR AT BN KU, W E I AE E R EIEAERR EER . B AN A
RPN HCA R B R DR RIS 5y DU I 15 D0 I B S BUR th s HLE B
2, Wi EERS FRARTEE G B . AT ZCBOR SRR R TR R EN &
& EAERAT W] CARE RS AT AR IR e BB h B AR, W0AT SR e BV RF FoR
BOR, i ERpIR A LR AT St n A B S A BRFIRR AR ELs],  BUEAT P
AHEBIREG BInFERAFR ERIRE ;A PURARZKT (1 R AN Al A5 3k T, i 7e
TR ASM K -

ASSRAT B R URE HAVRE H 22T 2 i BV EAE S LR, e WER B ARKT. AR ERt EE
ARESRZER, WHEHIRBIA S/ RN, &5F 18 g g B sk, Mg
JERERIE R BEMEFERLZA R, MeiveRNGENATEILMEEZIE.

B 24
PRFFIABATIERT A SR B A2 88 N SAVRIIR . JIiR4E S B8 2 SRR R I

PO HE, SRZE AR REESAE, HEARSAT O RS AT S IR
R R FIALEBR A
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Sfih £

A 2018412 A 31 H

BIPAER 1,499,949 623,338 - - - 2,123,287 2,120,333
oAl JE G IE 2,885 488 - - - 3,373 3,373
1,502,834 623,826 - - - 2,126,660 2,123,706

A 2017412 A 31 H

H AR 1,542,244 525,309 - - - 2,067,553 2,066,853
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NRMERAERAT B BARRSN R PR IE RGBSR, DL Ab R & A 55
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1PN 1FEFE 54 aEfk
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jA20184E12 H31H 2017412 431 H

TR ARG AL T A 3,490 - 3,490

LAER & ST R i1 8 2 L AR

WRIE A e RE B R ARMIAO9R 51, BERAESRE HIRATER T 2 & 49 IR 2R AE LU 23
B
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1A 3M8A 14
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A 2018412 A 31 H
G
JHAE IR 4 J BUERAT S HoAth
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R4 K i A TR A7 7K - 1,191,131 - - - - - 1,191,131
—ZE+EANREIZ
TE WA A SEAE T - - 1,312,264 89,890 - - - 1,402,154
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DL SUEAE A s st N
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IR IEFL VR A - - - - - - 245 245
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315,429 1,195,167 1,315,562 90,720 1,644 99 3,855 2,922,476
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H AR 928,973 569,536 621,824 - - - - 2,120,333
HoAth BRIE K it M 1,769 1,116 488 - - - 1,442 4,815
JEAT R K - - - 1,937 - - - 1,937
930,742 570,652 622,312 1,937 - - 1,442 2,127,085
MENE L7 (615,313) 624,515 693,250 88,783 1,644 99 2,413 795,391
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A 2017412 A 31 H

JEAT IR 45 S BUERAT S oAt
SRS AL AT 562,072 - - - - - - 562,072
BRI A K i A [R] 3647 T - 831,897 - - - - - 831,897
—&2+ A Rz
TE WA R SEAE T - - 1,261,729 190,000 - - - 1,451,729
BB AR IE - 1,440 1,656 566 662 40 - 4,364
it ARG - - - - - - 3,400 3,400
MG E - - - - - - 210 210
IR JEFL T A - - - - - - 245 245
BAGILES T - - - - - - - -
562,072 833,337 1,263,385 190,566 662 40 3,855 2,853,917
&f
BIARK 1,081,879 460,136 524,838 - 2,066,853
A R TE R g 1,523 177 136 - 1,442 3,278
JEAT R - - - 437 - 437
1,083,402 460,313 524,974 437 - - 1,442 2,070,568
BN 4 2R (521,330) 373,024 738,411 190,129 662 40 2,413 783,349
SRl E 2 BRI A SR fEAE
Eih v = N 71 e §=7
HAth 4 ml s B A SR A E A R fEE, RREIT B S i — SR R E R
Fr i 7€

S A AR RO S I FV 5 R T Y < S P < R 15 I i B L T A
5.

BAEH

ARERAT BRANMERF 78 2 B S SR BUR A -

- EPHRATRBHIRTE (B4 RRIZSR, R
- HEFFAERAT 2 A8 5E DASR AL & R [ 5 T I R

%&%%ﬁﬁmﬁﬁ%%%%@ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ%%%%%@%Wﬁﬁ%%&%ﬁ?@%%u

AT AIRILEE E AR, P ASRAT i PR 8 A LASRAT 36 (A BRI A i i
BB RgE. B USRI RIEARNEFENEREEeMEHE.

ASERAT LA T SERT BURE 3 AR H AR 15 2 50 AT SR AR R 2 SRAT IR B . iR 7 4%
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5. &Rt LHZAfEERE
AN N RE SR AEAT B ASAT QT il 5 5o < A < AR ) 4 SO PRUEL A 2
2 VARSI E K, SRATHE e il TR DA U RN B fEAGRT A SUEER, AT
AR RE R AL T B R B N BRI AT Ry, AT 255 R Nk
HEHE L O EE.

O SRR T B AR I 355 IR PR A

RS T AR ERR LA SUEEEHE R SR TR, AR A REE TSR &

— =4,
s FUAEAE &at
—&K ] =&k N FUIEAE
T T Vi T
JA 20184 12 A 31 H
DL FUfEE A= B S S A N E
TR SR
-EHre B Yy 3,400,000 3,400,000
A 2017 12 A 31 H
At ERE
-ghg e 9% 3,400,000 3,400,000

JAZAESE, <R T HAE— 8O 8 iR A 12 .

FERPAS RS S0 A & P g R S i SR, A SUREER 255 R i IRES
ffro 22018 4F 12 H 31 H, A2 sefffEsHE HHSEE N E R emE £ (2017
Fo AL ERE) , WITTSEERR.

6. F RN
2018 2017
it b
5] SEAF T A7 A B, 38,865,802 19,697,348
BB F R 791 527
38,866,593 19,697,875
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HUESZH

B A A S

HAt g

A B r g S 2 B
G- YL LE LN
HAtN

1% BRI <

axfh AL E VIS S T 8 B s
DRI RF A A1 e 26 A2 1) BE S04 2%
<

- &

- FLABIH &

oAt a7 S

B M BT

ST #H

- e M ACAL

- EfE R

A IR K

JEEA B 4 e BRLERAT B HLAth < Rl AR (R &5 A

HIEEP SR I EE ey

— 2+ 8 H R e W R A

R

2018 2017
s s
8,524,924 2,659,596
2018 2017
s s

- 2,820,000
34,875 32,950
8,445 398,794
43,320 3,251,744
2018 2017
s s
650,000 550,000
51,365 -
74,462 -
450,000 420,000
1,288,000 1,120,000
3,254,813 2,772,670
1,321,752 1,266,549
7,077,428 6,632,380
224,989 205,751
14,392,809 12,967,350
2018 2017
e i
557 -
12,605 -
276,123 -
10,715 -
300,000 -
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11.

12.

A S H
M TE S H %y

it AL
AR B
- DA £ 52 Y A 2 ]

MR A EF P48 2o e At e i WA 2 2 LR T

A A
FEAAR B R G SH ZAR . ()
GRS Z AR

DAAE £ 52 18 g J 1

HoAth

F¥: 2018 TFEREEZ A HEAISM, 4 THEHEFMKA 2,000,000 ##,

AT

2018 2017
T T
2,508,318 730,000
(59,223) -
2,449,095 730,000

2018 2017

T T
15,692,180 248,250,580
2,424,210 40,961,346
- (40,218,405)

(59,223) -

84,108 (12,941)
2,449,095 730,000

DA 22 PHEHAE A

% 8.25% 2 M ZEH . AEETEF A =R 2,000,000 B E Sy, RIDUERE 2 JHEHESH], 1%

16.5% 2 fL 515 .
JEE A 3 4 S SRR AT e At < RBEARS 110 465 47

LS A

JERAF 3 4 S SRR AT e At < RS 0 &6 47
- FEAF

- SR B it Al R 2 G

- BRAT T A SR IH

- 2R B AN B ERAT 22 WK

- 2R B A ERA ZWWM

e IAEARK - Fis B
%%&ﬁ%ﬂ%ﬁﬁ
e IEARK - Fis B

2017 £ 2 FIBFIEH,

DA Z THRTHR A, 1% 16.5% 2 FURFHE

2018 2017
T T
4,056,631 1,883,933
298,615,119 546,522,979
352,492 2,203,076
9,676,490 9,898,122
2,790,601 1,563,510
(62,798) -
315,428,625 562,071,620
1,191,418,048 831,897,487
(286,592) -
1,191,131,456 831,897,487
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12.

13.

14.

JeRAF 3 4 S BRLRAT e At < RN (1 465 4 - 46

Ji> TR YT 1 22 e 19 1) S A7

-1& 3MMH
-3& 61HH
-6 & 12 H
W AEIELR - B REE

=PRI ARIE
=P B IRIA A4

S THENK
T IAETEM < - SR PR

RS,

PA2Y sUE A T & HOL S BT N A

AE L TiRETF

R ] IOV TG TR T RONE Y

R [ R A )

- gHrE S S (T B BUA)

#it

2018 2017

T T
1,313,285,130  1,261,728,820
80,000,000 120,000,000
10,000,000 70,000,000
(1,130,610) -
1,402,154,520  1,451,728,820
2,008,714,601  2,845697,927
2018 2017

T T
1,166,500 917,500
(20,000) -
1,146,500 917,500
7,810,521 3,446,178
8,957,021 4,363,678

Rl AT A

2018 2017

T T
3,400,000 -
- 3,400,000

3,400,000

3,400,000

3k BT RS IR AR S R IEAT . R 2018 4F 12 A 31 H, g B S MM A RHEMES % =

FHEHIEL, R,
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15.

16.

17.

BEIERIA

PN A A SRAT R RE 2 5 LR A e TR B BRI A TR 1

R
JiIpES 74
MBI E Pt e 55
e T pEits
A201741 A 1 H. 20174F 12 A 31 H
J 2018412 A 31 H (1,391) 246,785 245,394
T R A A A R e A A U 0B A RS T s B AR P S N AN .
B PN CE 31
LEUE T il &5
e T T
A
A2017FE1HA1H&12A31H 1,472,938 738,924 2,211,862
' - 924,575 924,575
A 2018412 A 31 H 1,472,938 1,663,499 3,136,437
BETPTEs Ky
A2017E1H1H&12A31H 1,472,938 738,924 2,211,862
i - 51,365 51,365
A 2018412 A 31 H 1,472,938 790,289 2,263,227
R M EAE
A 2018412 A 31 H - 873,210 873,210
A 20174 12 A 31 H - - i
IRYTEE SRR T DL AR VE T AL, T XK 4 33.3%.
EGEVEE Y
2018 2017
g g
AR R P 133,364,537 124,041,599
(E-YeZ N 795,608,901 957,837,010
R BRI A8 A7 K 1,191,359,827 984,974,604
2,120,333,265  2,066,853,213
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18.

19.

20.

A AR TH S 45545
2018 2017
T pEits

L B R A R E AR R 1,604,445 313,403
R IR 4 4o 4 1,441,633 1,441,633
HAhARIA:

- AR K 1,480,590 1,097,394

- REE 261,251 395,467

- 15 18,500 21,500

- HiAh 8,346 8,767

1,768,687 1,523,128
4,814,765 3,278,164
5 A
2018 2017
HEATHY AT
Jik&iiy ¢aE| SHA 54 85 H S A
b T

CLEAT S O A
AR 2 H R % 3,000,000 300,000,000 3,000,000 300,000,000
ARG FEREATEFE IR, ARERAT Z BB H I M52 ),
NGRS

ASRAT R BN - (O EEEHEAN SR ERNE, DR e R A E R E N
N WATZIARZ Gy, B EE R HAT

ASRATIAE L BRI LIEAT 225 0T

2018 2017
i prEd s
B PR H A B3 8,375,123 2,625,319
FH 4 B FoAth A B =7 H 1,321,752 1,266,549
BB A RS 2 s - 240,927,907
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21.

BN L HI5E 5 - 4
ASERAT I e o JA R 1o A B ] s N (RO B AR A R

2018 2017
T T
AR R P 120,294,447 115,990,283
B 711,384,489 906,262,078
R RIVHH A8 AT 1,174,817,037 977,058,968

2,006,495,973  1,999,311,329

TE 2R P A 3k 45 6k A AR A A ST 5 R F5 JEEOR BT A1E . REB AR EFRI R %A 0.125%
(2017 “: 0.01%) N T EEREIRATIE . @il B M08 50 A7 a4 G AR R R & ) T
0.01% % 2.20% (2017 4F: 0.05% % 0.90%) Azjir— & ={& H N2,

WEHAE B % S s B A e e N 5 5 SR BL ) i HE 4T

ARERAT ) — FKBAE A T G AR E, FTENSEAHEENT, %4174 3,490,000 41
(2017 4E: 3,490,000 #:%s) o ARERAT M FLEEF 15 Ao aZ B E N W IR AR

T EEHA B G
2018 2017
it it

W& MER (BREEFME) 5,378,380 4,636,760
FZE 20184F 12 H 31 H, AT IR FHA M SAERE (2017 £ FBH .

B ARSI B

R IR, ASRAT MAT A1 BT SR BRI R S A &3

2018 2017
Wt Wl

HEEEBNRIEH 3,490,000 3,490,000

A AR BORAR IR A B BB I G 3R A 0 (2017 45 T .
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IR ARAE R ET

APRAT 2 B — AR B 2L B AR G EUG BI R E M B ARG 8, (RIEFTE S BHIEEe. STEIME
FEEAAGRATEFE /bR, IR ZE NEZ. ARITHETEIREERFES a0
Z HALER, g 7RI R E sk E G

ARERAT AREFE A BT LI 4y 224,989 3658 (2017 4. 205,751 36%) , A JEEFIAN
R 55 M HoAh AT R RN .

g I

MRIFA TG 2 8B E SR, T A RASRAT S AR AR AR AT B AL BRI By P 28504
Z i kA4

2018 2017
i T

—HEPIN 521,300 1,251,120

BOERFHEN (UHEEEME) - 521,300
521,300 1,772,420

AL M B AR RN SRAT AL o 2 B P AT < . AT ALE L 2019 4 5 H &M, AL EH
WA G AERFANE

o

I =

RIREIARIE, ATEHSTENRE 2018 4F 12 A 31 H IEAFBE YR 35451 JF 0.50 i
W (2017 4F: EEM) , 43E 1,500,000 #EH (2017 4F: FHEW) ZHERKE.

i

P

EAtELE 2017 & 12 A 31 HIEFEFE 2 MBS RET S T8, DT SEZE 2018 4F
12 A 31 H b5 2 WA Rk i B fd FH i 2055 .
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CAN 2 B A S B R Mg A Rl E R RN GRATSE (B SR EEHAMAER, &
LA 70 B ERER AL A%«
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1. EEE - 8

ASERAT AR A8 P 0 5 DA SO 2 [ I, ASSRAT DA B D2 Bl P . I
LA A e A B L ASCIRASRAT IR 8 B X R A {4 2 75 22, AT SE AT [ 3 T
ZeKE.

AGRAT AT ARBTG5 VA LA e R 0T R . SRR B0 ke R ORI,
APt ARl e B AE T AF B ZORAN TAR RSN HAR AR 15 CACIED . AERATIRY LA 1 2 BE )
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(&) HEHEY
ASERAT T B T SR HRAT T .

(H) &P EH— DTSRI

P BT R RG2S BB 0, RIBERAE AT 5 e
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B
FEAT I B B

i — HABFAN FH & 1,166,500
BHEF EEAAEE

3. HAWMETER
()  RENE SR
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it

917,500
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HAT AL

BT A AR IR A I SRV BRI ARG ) (BRATSE CEAS BIRID DU RERT
Bo AR TS (EERE AT E W) MEETH GRITE CGEA) HRD i
o AGRATIRANFEA TR AR SAE B R BB IR 2, 10 AREARAR T VAT
B R .

2018 2017
% %
B AR 139.10 157.29
—HEARLE R 139.08 157.27
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